Buffalo Urban Development Corporation
95 Perry Street, Suite 404

Buffalo, New York 14203

phone: 716-856-6525 fax:716-856-6754
web:buffalourbandevelopment.com

Buffalo Urban Development Corporation
MEETING NOTICE

Meeting of the BUDC Downtown Committee
is scheduled for:

Thursday, April 17, 2014
at
12:00 p.m.
at 65 Niagara Street - 901 City Hall
Buffalo, New York 14202

Please confirm your attendance plans with Carrie Hocieniec (362-8367) or e-mail:
chocieni@ecidany.com as soon as possible.

» Hon. Byron W. Brown, Chairman of the Board < Dennis Penman, Vice Chairman - Peter M. Cammarata, President - David A. Stebbins, Vice President
- Andrew Schoeppich, Treasurer » Theresa Carpenter, Assistant Treasurer « Kevin J. Zanner, Secretary «


mailto:chocieni@ecidany.com

Buffalo Urban Development Corporation
95 Perry Street » Suite 404
Buffalo, New York 14203

phone: 716-856-6525
fax: 716-856-6754
web:  buffalourbandevelopment.com

Butfalo Urban Development Corporation

Downtown Committee Meeting

Thursday, April 17, 2014
12:00 Noon
Mayor’s Office of Strategic Planning
901 City Haii, Buffalo, NY

Agenda

1. Approval of Minutes of March 20, 2014 Meeting (Action) (Enclosure)

2. Buffalo Building Reuse Loan Program Draft RFP, Round II (4ction) (Enclosure)
3. Strategic Buildings Criteria (Discussion)

4. Downtown Infrastructure Plan — Update (Information)

5. Planing Mill Project Loan Update (Information)

6. BBRP Infrastructure Projects Update (Information)

7. Buffalo Place Updates (imformation)

8. Buffalo Green Code & Brownfield Opportunity Arcas (Information)

9. Adjournment (4ction)

Hon. Byron W. Brown, Chairman of the Board + Dennis Penman, Vice Chairman * Peter M, Cammarata, President
David A. Stebbins, Vice President * Andrew Schoeppich, Treasurer » Theresa Carpenter, Assistant Treasurer « Kevin J. Zanner, Secretary



1.0

2.0

Minutes of the Meeting
of the
Downtown Committee
of
Buffalo Urban Development Corporation

Mayor's Office of Strategic Planning
901 City Hall
Buffale, New York
March 20, 2014

12:00 p.m.
Committee Members Present: Committee Members Absent:
James W. Comerford Dottie Gallagher-Cohen
Brendan R. Mehaffy {Committee Chair) Benjamin N. Obletz
Christina P. Orsi Maria R, Whyte

Steven J. Stepniak

Officers Present:

Peter M. Cammarata, President
David A, Stebbins, Vice President
Kevin J. Zanner, Secretary

Guests Present: Christian Campos, CFO, TM Montante Development; Debra Chernoff, Buffalo
Place, Inc.; Diane K. Church, Hurwitz & Fine, P.C.; Rebecca Gandour, City of Buffalo Office of
Strategic Planning; Daniel Leonard, Buffalo Niagara Partnership; Peter Merlo, City of Buffalo
Department of Public Works; Brandye Merriweather, BUDC Project Coordinator; Laura Smith, Buffalo
Niagara Partnership; Michael A. Taylor, New York Business Development Corporation; and Gary
Witulksi, Gity of Buffalo Office of Strategic Planning.

Roll Call: The Secretary called the roll of Committee members at 12:15 p.m. and a quorum of the
Committee was determined to be present.

Approval of Minutes of the September 19, 2013 Meeting — The minutes of the September 19,
2013 meeting of the Downtown Committee were presented. Mr. Comerford made a motion to approve
the minutes. The motion was seconded by Mr. Stepniak and unanimously carried.

The Planing Mill Project Loan Report — Mr. Stebbins reviewed his March 20, 2014
memorandum to the Committee regarding a proposed $750,000 loan to TM Mantante Development for
The Plaring Mill project located at 141 Elm Sireet in the City of Buffalo. Mr. Stebbins reviewed with
the Commitiee the steps previcusly taken to establish the BUDC loan program and noted that the
Downtown Committee was designated by resolution of the BUDC Board to serve as the interim loan
committee. Mr. Stebbins then introduced Michael A, Taylor of the New York Business Development
Corporation (NYBDC). NYBDC has been retained by BUDC (following a competitive RFP process) to
perform underwriting services in connection witk the BUDC loan program. Mr. Taylor then presented
the proposed loan case, reviewing for the Committee the details of the proposed loan as set forth in
his March 17, 2014 memorandum to the Committee. He outlined for the Committee the terms of the
ioan, including the collateral requirements. A questior and answer session followed Mr. Tayior's
presentation. In resporse to a question from Mr. Mehaffy, Mr. Taylor stated that The Planing Mill
project would not go forward without the $750,000 BUDC loan. Mr. Taylor also confirmed that the loan




BUDC Downtown Committee Meeting — March 20, 2014

is structured to be repaid in full after six months, but that any iimited principal amount outstanding after
six months would be termed out to be paid off in full over no more than thirty-six months. In response
to a question from Mr. Comerford, Mr. Taylor indicated that construction should be completed by the
midd:e of July. There being no further questions, Mr. Stebbins presented a proposed resolution to the
Committes, copies of which were provided ‘o the Committee members. Mr, Stepniak made a motion
to approve the following resolution, which motion was seconded by Mr. Comerford and unanimously

carried:

RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN COMMITTEE AS THE INTERIM LOAN
COMMITTEE OF BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPQORATION (“BUDC")
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF A LOAN IN AN
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $750,000 THROUGH THE BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE
LOAN PROGRAM TO ELM/MICHIGAN HOLDINGS LLC TO FINANCE CONSTRUCTION
AND RENOVATION COSTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE RESTORATION AND
RECONTRUCTION OF THE FORMER E.M. HAGER AND SONS PLANING MILL
LOCATED AT 141 ELM STREET, BUFFALO, NEW YORK TO CONVERT [T INTO A
MIXED USE BUILDING CONTAINING COMMERCIAL SPACE AND RESIDENTIAL
APARTMENTS AND OTHER ELIGIBLE COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE PROJECT

WHEREAS, BUDC is the beneficiary under a Grant Disbursement Agreement
between New York State Urban Development Corporation dibfa Empire State
Development, as grantor, and the City of Buffalo, as grantee, for the City of Buffalo -
Building Reuse Upstate City-by-City Capital Project, Project Number X956 {the "Grant
Agreement’) the proceeds of which are being used to fund the BUDC's Buffalo Building
Reuse Loan Program (the "Loan Program”); and

WHEREAS, the BUDC Board of Directors previously adopted its Buffalo Building
Reuse Loan Program Policy Guidelines and Operating Plan (the “Program Guidelines") and
by resolution dated June 25, 2013, designated the Downtown Committee of BUDC to act as
the interim loan committes (the “Loan Committee”) to make recommendations to the BUDC
Board of Directors regarding loans presented to the Committee, with final approval of all
loans reserved to the BUDC Board; and

WHEREAS, Elm/Michigan Holdings LLC {the "Company") has submitted an
application to BUDC for a lpan from the Loan Program in an amount up to $750,000 fo
provide bridge financing, pending receipt of payments from an historic tax credit Investor, to
fund the renovation and reconstruction of the former E.M. Hager and Sans Planing Mill
located at 141 Elm Street, Buffalo, New York to convert it into a mixed use building with
commercial space and residential apartments (the "Project”); and

WHEREAS, the requested loan complies with Grant Agreement and the Program
Guidelines; and

WHEREAS, BUDC has contracted with New York Business Development
Corporation ("NYBDC") to underwrite lcans in connection with the Loan Program and
NYBDC has submitted a loan report to the Loar Committee with respect to the Company's
application {the “Loan Report”) and additional documentation reiating io the Project,
including a commitment letter from The Bank of Castile to provide construction financing for
the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Loan Coemmittee has reviewed the foregoing documentation and
an NYBDC representative has presented the propesed Loan fo the Loan Committee.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE LOAN COMMITTEE OF THE BUFFALO URBAN
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:



3.0

4.0

BUDC Downtown Committee Meeting — March 29, 2014

Section 1. Subiect o the conditions contained in this resolution, a loan in an
amount not to exceed $750,000.00 {the "Loan”) to the Company for the purpose of providing
bridge financing for the Project all as more particularly described in the Company's
appiication and in the Loan Report, is hereby recommended for approvai by the BUDC
Board of Directors.

Section 2. The Loan Committee recommends that the Loan be made on the terms
outfiined in the Loan Report and be subject to the requirements of the Grant Agreement and
the Program Guidelines, and be secured by a second mortgage lien and assignment of rents
and leases on the property iocated at 141 Elm Streef, Buffalo, New York (the “Premises”)
{subject only to a first mortgage and assignment of rents and lzases heid by The Bank of
Castile) and a lien on and security interest in all of the accounts, inventory, furniture, fixtures
and equipment and other personal property assets of the Company, subject only to a prior
lien held by The Bank of Castile.

Section 3. The Loan Committee recommends that the Loan be guaranteed, on a
jeint ang several basls, by the Montante Group LLC, 141 Elm Group LLC, TM Montante
Cevelopment, LLC and, to the extent consistent with the tax credit structure and to the
extent provided to The Bank of Castlle, a guaranty by Planing Mill Master Tenant LP (the
"Master Tenant"), and by the personal guaranties of Matthew Montante, Daniel Montante
and Kevin Montante.

Section 4. it is anticipated that the Loan will be paid either partially or in full with
the proceeds of capital contributions made by the tax creditor investor to the Master Tenant
and contributed up by the Master Tenant to the Company (the "Capital Contributions”). The
Loan Committee recommends that the Loan be secured by a collateral assignment of the
Capital Contributions and a pledge of the account holding the Capital Contributions. Tao the
extent The Bank of Castile also requires a collateral assignment of the Capital Contributions
and a pledge of such account, the Loan Committee recommends that clesing of the Loan be
conditioned upon entry by The Bank of Castile into an intercreditor agreement acceptable to
BUDC and its counsel allowing for release or restriction of such assignment and pledge and
payment to BUDC of Capital Centributions, free and clear of any lien, sufficient to pay the
Loan in part or in full, as deemed appropriate by BUDC staff.

Section 5. This Resolution shail take effect immediately. A copy of this resclution
shall be provided to the BUDC Board of Directors as part of its consideration of the proposed
Loan.

City-by-City Loan Program Update — Mr. Stebbins informed the Commitiee that the Grant

Disbursement Agreement beiween the City of Buffalo and Empire State Development has been
signed. The indemnity agreement between the City and BUDC has also been signed. Mr. Stebbins
outlined the loan program funding procedures. BUDC will request a $1M advance from ESD which will
be deposited into the City’s imprest account which has been established for purposes of the grant.
BUDC will then request that the City release to BUDC $750,00C from the imprest account to fund The
Planing Mill loan. Mr. Stebbins indicated that funding for the loan is uniikely to be disbursed and
available to BUDC until June. Mr. Stebbins also indicated that a second request for proposals will be
issued for the next round of funding.

Downtown Infrastructure Plan — Update — Ms. Merriweather updated the Committee regarding

downtown infrastructure planning matters. She noted that there were over seventy participants at the
Urban Strategies forums and interviews that took place last month, and that Urban Strategies plans to
schedule a “visioning"” session for the stakeholders and general public to get feedback on the
infrastructure plan. Roll-out of the plan is expected sometime in June of this year.



5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0
11.0
12.0

BUDC Downtown Committee Meeting — March 20, 2014

BBRP Infrastructure Projects Update ~ Mr. Merlo presented a detailed update regarding the
status of multiple infrastructure projects in the City of Buffalo, inclucing progress on the Cars Sharing
Main Street project (50C and 800 blocks), the Pearl Street conversion to two-way traffic, and the
Ellicott Street, Genesee Gateway, EImwood Avenue, Chio Street, Fillmare/Carlton and Court Street

improvemeant projects.

Preservation Ready Survey & Strategic Buildings Update - Ms. Merriweather reported that
Pan-American Consultants, !nc. has completed the preservation-ready building survey. The report
identifies which buiidings may be eligible for historic preservation tax credits and other incentives, and
will serve as a tocl to assist with future development opportunities. Ms. Merriweather indicated that a
copy of the report has been provided to the City of Buffalo Department of Permits and Inspection
Services. Mr. Lecnard then circulated a handout proposing to establish a scoring guide to identify and
prioritize downtown properties for adaptive reuse. Mr. Leonard suggested that a working session of the
Committee be convened as part of the next Committee meeting to review the scoring criteria. Mr.
Stebbins noted that the scoring criteria could be used to score BUDC loan program RFP responses.

Buffalo Place Updates — Ms. Chernoff presented the Buffalo Place update, including an update on
a recent meeting with Fountain Plaza property owners. She also reported on the reallocation of
funding for the New York Main Street grant program. Five new projects will be funded, and are
expected to be completed by August of this year.

Buffalo Green Code & Brownfield Opportunity Areas — Mr. Mehaffy briefed the Committee
regarding the status of the Buffalo Green Code and Brownfield Opportunity Areas.

Buffalo Creek Proiect Updates — Presentation of this item was deferred.

Erie Canal Harbor Project Update — Presentation of this item was deferred.

Buffalo Niagara Medical Campus Updates — Presentation of this item was deferred.

ECIDA Adaptive Re-Use/Redevelopment Policy Update - Presentation of this item was
deferred,

Adjournment — There being no further business to come before the Downtown Committes, upon motion
made by Mr. Stepniak, seconded by Mr. Comerford and unanimously carried, the Downtown Committee
mesting of March 20, 2014 was adjourned at 1:10 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

//?7:)’7/%/

Kevin J. Zanrer, Secretary




BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT MQ

Hem. Byron W, Bravm, Thal

DRAFT
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS
ISSUE DATE: APRIL 18, 2014

PROPOSAL SUBMISSION DEADLINE:
MAY 16, 2014
4:00 PM

FUNDING PROYIDED BY EMPIRE STATE DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

ANDREW M. CUOMO, GOVERNOR
KENNETH ADAMS, PRESIDENT & CEO

Ewpire Stafe Dovelopment



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

Table of Contents

Introduction and Background

Proposal Rules

Evaluation Criteria

Application Award Process

Proposal Application

Procurement Lobbying Restrictions & Forms

Page

Page

Page

Page 9

Page 10

Page

15



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

Downtown Development Project Proposals Introduction

and Submission Requlrements

At the direction of Mayor Byron W. Brown and the Mayor's Office of Strategic Planning
(OSP) and with funding provided by Empire State Development Corporation through the
City-by-City Program, the Buffaio Urban Development Corporation (BUDC), is seeking
proposals for downtown development projects located in the City of Buffalo's Buffalo
Building Reuse Project investment araa (see Exhibits A & B).

Introduction

Buffalo is experiencing an economic renaissance highlighted by the redevelopment of
downtown. In recent years, Downtown Buffalo has seen more than $2.5 billion in
investment and $100 million in infrastructure projects. This is truly an exciting era for
both business and residential investment In the City of Buffaio.

The Queen City Hub, Buffalo's downtown revitalization plan, recognizes downtown as a
reglonal center for entertainment, culture, finance, education, healthcare, and life
sciences research. The city truly provides a unlque atmosphere with its six historic
districts and many national recognized buildings and beautiful architecture.

There are four primary areas of development that have led the revitalization of
downtown. Canalside is becoming a $250 million mixed-use entertainment destination
on the Erie Canal Harbor. The Cobblestone District features the $172 million
HarborCenter project that is currently under construction, as well as the Seneca Creek
Casino. The Buffalo Niagara Medical Campus on the north side has a $1.5 billion
impact on the region, and is expected to expand fts employment to 18,000 professionals
in the next few years. On the east end of the city is the recently transformed Larkin
District, formerly an abandoned industrial compound that is now a thriving public and

business area.

Residential development in the city is increasing as well, with approximately 1,200 units
added in the past six years. A recent residential market study projects that the
downtown market will absorb 161-323 units annually for the next five years. These
deveiopments, combined with Downtown Buffalo’s long list of amenities such as
theaters, galleries, restaurants/bars, retail, and professionai sporis teams, demonstrate
that Buffalo is truly on the rise as a thriving live, work, play environment.



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

ack

The City of Buffalo (City) and BUDC have reserved up to $1 million in “City-by-City”
Funds provided by Empire State Development Corporation (ESDC) for projects that
meet the guidelines and criteria contained in the Buffalo Bullding Reuse Project (BBRP)
report and boundaries map (Exhibits A & B) with & particular focus on:

» Adaptive reuse of vacant or undernitilized Class B & C commercial structuras or
new construction on vacant lots in strategic iocations;

» Mixed-use projects with a significant proportion of residential units, and that
include a storafront or first-ficor retail use;

o Target investment arsas within downtown that will leverage existing residential
developmenits or other anchor economic drivers tc bagin to create the critical
mass necessary o support new retail and other neighborhood services and
amenities;

¢ Projects that are proximate or linked to public transit facilities and/or that provide
opportunities for other sustainabie transporiation modes.

This Funding will generally be offered as one of two loan types:

1. Short-tenn bridge {Construction) financing, $500,000 maximum loan, 54 month
maximum loan term; for financing grants, tax credit equity or other take-out

financing through construction;

2. Interest-ont rim Financing (“Mini-Perm”), $750,000 maximum loan, 54 month
maximum loan term; for financing prejects through a lease-up and stabilization
period.

in order to receive funding through the BBRP Loan Fund, applicants must
complete a two stage process:

1. Proposazls are initially evaiuated by BUDC based on the proposal’s alignment
with the goals and objectives of the Buffalo Building Reuse Project.

2. Proposals recommended by BUDC will then advance to the formal financial
evaluation and loan underwriting process. During this phase of the procass
applicants must complete the BBRP Loan Program Application (Please see
BUDC's Loan Application and Credit Policies, Exhiblt C). Please note that
applicants must successfully complete BUDC’s loan & underwriting
process pricr to belng awarded funding.



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

Proposal Rules

Reservations

1.

BUDC and the City reserve the right to accept or reject any or all proposals
received;

BUDC and the Cily reserve the right to seck additionai information from -
Applicants and related entfties, especially those not previously funded by BUDC

and/or the City;

All funding decisions related to this RFP are subject fo all applicable federal,
state and iocal laws and regulations, and the policies and procedures of the City
of Buifalo and Buifalo Urban Development Corporation for the administration of

state funds.

All costs assoclated with the preparation of this proposal are the rasponsibliity of
the applicant.

Eligibie Appiicants

1.

Applicants must demonsirate the development and fihancial management expertise
to successfully develop, design, construct, manage and implement the project. This
expertise is demonstrated through previous experience in successfully developing
projects similar to the one proposed, either by partners or key staff within the
business or organization.

Applicants must demonstrate ownership or site control of all real estate considerad
part of the proposed project. Although final acquisition costs may be considered as
part of the proposal, applicant must show a clear intent and agreement to purchase,
such as a Purchase Option Agreement or comparable legal instrument.

Applicants must be able to meet other City and New York State requirements
relative to the City-by-City and ESDC programs, specifically those concemning equal
opportunity, affirative marketing, environmental review, and acquisition, labor,
lead-based paint, conflict of interest, debarment and suspension, and flood

insurance.

It is the policy of BUDC, the City of Buffalo and Empire State Development
Corporation that all local Minority/AWomen Business Enterprises {M/WBE's) be
ancouraged to submit propogals. BUDC continues to ensure that al! locally owned
M/WBE's are afforded the maximum opportunity to participate in the provision of
goods and services for BUDC. BUDC encourages the award of at least twenty
percent (20%) MBE and at least five percent (5%) WBE of the total dollar value of a
project directly or indirectly to MWBE's. BUDC salsc encourages the utllization of a



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

construction workforce of twenty percent (20%) minority and five percent (5%)
femala.

Any person or subcontractor undertaking a part of the work under the terms of the
Contract, by virtue of any agreement with the Respondent, must receive approval of
the President or Vice President of BUDC or his designee prior fo any such
undertaking. in the event the Respondent desires to subcontract some part of the
work specified herein, the Respondent shall fumnish with their proposal the names,
qualifications, and experience of his/her proposed subcontractors. Subcontractors
shall conform, in all respects to the provisions specified for the Respondent. The
Respondent shall, however, remain fuily liable and responsibls for the work done by
their subcontractors. BUDC may terminate the Contract if the subcontracting is
done without the Vice-President’s prior approval.

6. Applicants must demonstrate compliance with the BUDC's Procurement Lobbying

policy.

Evaluation Ciiterla

Funds will be awarded to those applicants whose proposals best meet the
following selection criteria and offer the greatest prospects of successful
completion.

1.

4I

Completeness of the Application Proposal

All required documents have been submitted and the project is
presented in a clear and concise manner

Experience and Qualifications

Applicant and any affiliated partners and team members must
demonstrate that they have successfully completed project(s)
similar in size and scope

Consistency with Buffalo Building Reuse Project criteria
Proximity to existing residential clusters and economic drivers
Proximity to light rall and pubiic transportation

Existing vacant space, adaptive reuse opportunity

An adaptive reuse of an historic structure

Consistency with Queen Clty Hub Plan and Green Code
Concentrating residential development in existing focal areas to
create critical mass.

Providing a range of income/rental pricing

Creative Adaptive Reuse

Proposal provides for the creative and architecturally appropriate
adaptive reuse of a significant structure or problem property
MBEWBE/MBE Participation

Proposal includes participation of certified Minority and Women
Business Enterprises



Each application will undergo a comprehanaive review by BUDC to ensure that

BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

Project Budget and Demonstration of Need

Project budget is complete, and all sources and uses of funds are
clearly defined and documented.

Project budget demonstrates a need for this funding that cannot be
obtained through equity or conventional financing

Evidence or commitments for the balance of project financing are
included.

Cost estimates prepared by a responsible source

Leveraging

BUDC funding is maximized relative to the total project cost
Applicant is committing a minimum of Ten Percent (10%) cash
equity into the project.

Project Rezdiness

Applicant Is prepared to begin construction of the project within a
reasonable period (24 months) following notice of award.

Applicant can demonstrate site control and the abliity to close on all
properties included In the project within a reasonable period of time
following notice of award.

ali required documents have been completed and submitted. Complete

applications will go on to an Eligibility Review. if BUDC finds It necessary, they
may request any missing documentation in writing. The Applicant has ten (10)
business days from the date of the recelpt of the BUDC request to provide such
documents. No documents other than those requested will be accspted. ifthe
Respondent fails to supply BUDC with any of the itemized documants within the
ten day period, BUDC will not review the application any further. The applicant
will recalve an Application Review Letter from BUDC stating that the appiication

was incomplete, and not selected for funding.

Please note projects selected must complete BUDC's formal loan
application and underwriting process before belng awarded funding.



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

Submit completed proposais no later than 4:00 pm on May 18, 2014 to;

Brandye Menriweather, Downtown Development Coordinator
Buffalo Urban Development Corporation

95 Perry Strest

Buffalo, N.Y. 14203

bmerriweather@buffalourbandevelopmentcorporation.com

RE: BUDC Downtown Development Project RFP Submission

Applicants are asked to submit an original and five (5) complete copies of a Letter of
Intent, Proposal Application and attachments to the above address. Applicants should
also send a digitai copy of the original to:

bmemniweather@buffalourbandevelopment.com



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

" Tentative Schedule and Subi to Change T

April 18, 2014 Request for Proposal Release Date

May 16, 2014 Proposal Application due to BUDC

June 25, 2014 Anticlpated Dats that Applicants will be notified of conditional
funding decisions

in lleu of a pre-submilesion confarence, questions should be submitted In writing to

bmemriweather@buffalourbandevelopment.com. BUDC will respond to all questions in

writing.

The BUDC Selection Committee wili review the submitted Proposal Applications. The
applicants selected through this process will be contacied by BUDC to submit a formai
loan application and additional financial information prior to being awarded funding.



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

Proposal Application

BUDC DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT PROJECT SUBMISSION

Applicant Name:;

Federal Tax ID Number:
Private Corporation/Individual:
Non-Profit Corporation:

Other:

Prolect Description - Provide a detailed description of the project that is proposed. Please include the
following information:

Location of the project(s)

General redovelopment strategy & details regarding rezl setete product types proposad;
Demonstration of Site Control

Residential: rentai vs. ownership, number bedrooms/unit, square footage, unit amenities,
common area features and amenities, if any;

Commercial: office, retail, food & beverage, hospitality, other;

Parking avallabllity

Age of the building, years vacant or current occupancy level;

Any local and national historic preservation designation, current or pending

Partlcular redevelopmeant challenges encountered by the project: environmental contamination,

bullding deterioration, building code issuas, etc.

AN

NAASNN

10



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

Approximate Number of Residential Units:
Current Status of Project:

Estimated Completion Dats:

Tolal Project Cost;

City-by-Clty Funds Requested:

Chief officisl of applicant

Name:
Title:

Mailing Address:

Clty, State, Zip:

Phone:

Email Address:

Designated contact person for thig application
Name:

Title:

Mailing Address:

City, State, Zip

Phone:

Emall Address:

11



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

DEVELOPMENT COSTS
Proposed Acquisition Cost: $

Land $
Buildings 3

Subtotal $

Constiructione Costs:
Hard Costs

Site Work

Fixtures, Furnighings & Equipment
Plumbing, Electrical, Security System
HVAC

Foundation, Framing, Roofing, efc.
Landscaping

A £ 48 o R o

Subtotal $
Soft Costs:

Architectural/ Engineering Fees
Legal Faes

Accounting Fees

Administrative/ Development Feas
Survey

Title Work

Taxes

insurance

Relocation

Other

Miscellaneous Costs:

£ £ € R €7 1A 4N H B EP

Devsaloper Fee $
Project Reserve $

Contingency:
Other Fess not mentioned (please list) $
TOTAL COSTS $



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT

CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP
P ] LOPMENT FINANCING
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Source of Funds Amount Use of Funds Status
1. Secured/ Panding
2, Secured/ Pending
3. Secured/ Pending
4. Secured/ Pending

1. Total Financing

Total Private Sources $
Daveloper Equity $
Other $
TOTAL ALL SOURCES $
2. Total Funding Gan $
3. Amount requested through
BBRP Loan Program $



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOFWVIENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

| HEREBY SUBMIT THIS PROPOSAL FOR THE CONSIDERATION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE IN
SUPPORT OF THE PROSECT HEREWITHIN DESCRIBED. | CERTIFY THAT ALL INFORMATION IS
TRUE AND COMPLETE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. IF SELECTED FOR FUNDING, I WILL
COOPERATE FULLY WITH THE CITY OF BUFFALO TO COMPLY WITH LOCAL AND FEDERAL
CDBG PROGRAM GUIDELINES, AS APPLICABLE.

The undersigned certifies that to hisfher knowiedge as of the date hereof, no principal, officer, board
member, empioyee responsibie 10 managing finances, consultant or contractor acting as a fiscal agent of
or to the Applicant, has been convicted of a local, state or federal criminal offensa involving moral
turpitude or dishonesty In the [ast 10 years or, if sooner, since reaching the age of eighteen (18). (K the
Applicant cannot certify to this statement, pieass submit a signed statement explaining the related facts
and clrcumsiances). To the extent required by BUDC, the undersigned agrees to reaffirm this certification
on prior written notice from BUDC.

Authorized Signature:

Date:

Printed Name:

Title:

14



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

Procurement Lobbving Restrictions
?. Restrictions on Bidder Communications with BUDC

Fursuant fo State Finance Law §§136-] and 130-k, this Raquest for Proposals imposes certain
resfrictions on communications between Applicants and BUDC during the procurement process.
Agplicants 2re prohibited from meking sontacts {whather orel, wittien of elecironic) with any
BUDC perzonne! or BUDC Board membear cther then the designated BUDC staff mamber
(unless the contact is otherwise permitted under State Finance Law §139-] (3) (a)). In addition,
Applicants aro hereby notified that any contact with any BUDC persornel, BUDC Board member
or the designated BUDC staff member which a reasonabie parson would infer is intended to
Infiuence the award of the contract under this Request for Proposals Is prohiblied. Thess
prohibitions apply from the Bidder's earfiest notice of BUDC’s intent to solicit proposats through
the final award and approval of the procurement contract ("Restricied Period”). For purposes of
{his Request for Proposais, the dasignated BUDGC staff member is Brandve Merriweather
(bmerﬁweamer@buffaburbandevelopmentoom).

Appiicanis are hereby noifiied that BULC is required to collect certain information when
contacted by a Bidder during the Restricted Period and make a determination of the
responsiblilty of the Bldder pursuant to State Finance Law §§1 36+ and 128-k. Certzin findings
of non-responsibllity can result in rejection of a contract award, and in the event of two findings

within & four (4) year period, the Bidder may be barred from obtaining governmantal
procuremant contracts,

BUDC is required to obtein written affirmations from all Applicante es to the
Respondent's understanding of, and agreement to comply with BUDC’s procedures relating to
permissible contacts (described in paragraph 1 above). The affirmation must be provided to
BUDC when the Bidder submits its proposal. The form of affrmation to be completed and

submitted by the Bidder is inciuded herain as Atiachment A.

State Finance Law §138-k (5) requires Applicants to provide written certification that all
information provided fo BUDC with respect to State Finance Law §138-k is complete, true and
accurate. The cartification must be provided to BUDC when Bldder submits its proposal, The
form of ceriification to be completed and submitted by the Bidder is included hersin as

Attachment B.



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

Procurement Lobbyin trictions

4. Bldder Disclosure of Prior Responsibility Determinations

State Finance Law §138-k (2) obligates BUDC to obtain specific information regarding
prior non-responsibllity determinations with respsct to State Finance Law §138+. In accordance
with State Finance Law §139-k, each Bidder must disciose whether there has been a finding of
non-responsibility made within the previous four (4) years by any Governmental Entity due to:
(a) a violation of State Finance Law §139-j or (b) the intentional provision of false or incomplete
information to &8 Governmental Entity. State Finance Law §139- sets forth detailed
requirements about the restrictions on contacts during the procurement process. A violation of
State Finance Law §1394 includes, but is not limited to, an imparmissible contact during the
Restricted Period (for example, contacting a person or entity other than the designated contact
person, when such contact does not fall within one of the exemptions).

As part of its respensibility determination, State Finance Law §139-k(3) mandates consideration
of whether a Bidder fails o timely disclose accurate or complete information regarding the
above non-responsibility determination. In accordance with the law, no procurement contract
shall be awarded to any Bidder that faiis to timely disclose accurate or complete information
under this section, unless a finding is made that the award of the procurement contract to the
Bidder is necessary to protect public property or public health and safety, and that the Bidder is
the only source capable of supplying the required article of procurement within the necessary
timeframe. Attachment C entitied “Offerer Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility
Determinations™ must be completed by the Bidder and submitted to BUDC at the time of

Bidder’s submission of its proposal.

5. Contract Termination Provision

New York State Finance Law §139-k (5) provides that every procurement
contract award subject to the provisions of State Finance Law §§139-k and 138- shall
contain a provision authorizing termination of the contract in the event that the
certification provided by the Bidder that is awarded the contract is found to be
intentionally false or intentionally incomplete. The following provision is hereby
incorporated by reference and included in the contract that is awarded (if one is
awarded) pursuant to this Request for Proposals:

BUDC Termination Provision

Pursuant to New York State Finance Law §139-k (5), BLIDC resarvas the right to
terminate this contract in the event it is found that the certification filed by the
Contractor in accordance with New York State Finance Law §139-k was intentionaily
false or intentionally incomplete. Upon such finding, BUDC may exercise its
termination rights by providing written nofification to the Contractor in accordance
with the written notification terms of this contract.

1




BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

Procurement Lobbying Restrictions

ATTACHMENT A

Affirmation of Understanding & Agreement pursuant to State Finance Law §139-] {3) and §130 {8)
(o}

| affirm that | understand and agree to comply with the proceduras of BUDC relative to permissible
contacts as required by State Finance Law §13064 (3) and §130-} (8) (b).

Date:

By:

Title:

Name:

Contractor Name;

Contractor Address:

17



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

Procurement Lobbying Restrictions

ATTACHMENT B

Offerar/Bidder Certiflcation:

| certify that all information provided to BUDC with respect to State Finance Law §139-k is

complete, true and accurate.

By: Date:

Name: Titie:

Contractor Name:

Contractor Address:;

18



BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

Proc ent Lobbying Restrictions
ATTACHMENT C

Offerer Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility Determinations
Name of Individual or Entity Sesking to Enter into the Procurement Contract:

Address:

Name and Title of Person Submitting this Form:

Contract Procurement Number:

Date:

1. Has any Govemmental Entity made a finding of non-responsibility regarding the individual or entity
seeking to enter into the Procurement Contract in the previous four years? (Please circle):

No Yes
If yes, please answer the next questions:

2. Was the basis for the finding of non-responsibility due to a violation of State Finance Law §139-j
(Please circle):

No Yes
3. Was the basls for the finding of non-responsibiiity due to the intentional provision of false or
incomplete information to a Governmental Entity? (Please clrcle):

No Yes
4. If you answered yes to any of the above questions, please provide detalls regarding the finding of non-
responsibility below.
Governmental Entity:

Date of Finding of Non-responsibiiity:

Basis of Finding of Non-Responsibility:

(Add additional pages as necessary)




BUFFALO URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

BUFFALO BUILDING REUSE PROJECT
CITY-BY-CITY FUNDING RFP

5. Has any Governmental Entity or other governmental agency terminated or withheld a Procurement Contract
with the above-named individua! or entity due to the intentional provision of false or incomplete information?

{Please circle):
No Yes

6. Ifyes, please provide detalls below.

Governmental Entity:

Date of Termination or Withholding of Contract:

Basts of Termination or Withholding:

{Add additional pages as necessary}

Offerer certifies that alf Information previded to BUDC with respect to State Finance Law §139-k Is complete, true
and accurate.

By: Date:
Signature

Name: Title:




PARTNERSHIPN

J-1IIII""+1iGr-'I-*|:1 atithe reguesTal Woor BB nn




Executlve Summary........ Rusvesassasane o pg2

Project Recommendations - Overview.......ccccecoesnanasaene O PE 3-4
Project Background..........ccoecre. baceseavers sesscasaessesserssrracnseses oxennce PE5
Project Participants.....ccsserseeercennncacaconeas S S pgo6
Project SCOPe and FOCUS.cccresnmimssmmmrcntcsssunaacassarassconsenssnssessesces pg 7-11
Downtown Challenges and Opportunities.......cce.... P NS pg 12-16
Project Recommendations in Detalil........ vesessasreneaseussnnse ceosserers PE 17725
Anticipated Outcomes......cocesannenenenss vemaseereresassusnurenanssnosass veees PE 26-28
Resources and References ......eocviensensens connmmensessrrnne vessssraseanne . Pg 29-30

& M Thankyou to Natlonal Fuél for thelr
i . generous support on this project

1 Buffalo Building Reuse | Report 2012



RUTIVE SUMMARY

Mayor Brown calls for
recommendations o
revitalize downtown and
encourage investment.

Downtown Buffalo has an oversupply
of office space, and the majority of
it Is from a stock of class B and C
buildings encumbered with a number
of factors limiting thelr potential
for redevelopment: Small foor
plates, gutdsted bullding systems,
environmentel problems, and [ack
of parldng. Morecver, ihay are
surrounded by public infrastracture
which needs Improvement.

Recognizing a need to address
this situation In & responsible and
systematic fashion, Mayor Byron
Brown requested the Buffalo Nlagara
Partnership developrecommandatfons
to Improve the compefitiveness of
Dovwntown Buffalo In capturing mew
job and investment decisions in the
near tenm, as well as to establish a
process and manegement capacity
for long-term downiswn sustzinable
development. In respomse, the
Paremership formed the Buifaio
Building Reuse Project comprisad of
experiepnced business leaders and
economic development professionals
to develop these recommendations,

Buffalo Nlagera has become
Increasingly commited to sman
growth. This has lad o a public
policy focus on the urban core, of
which dovmtown Buffalo Is the most

visible part. However, redeveloping
downtown's class B and C bufldings
entalls a difficult and compticated
process, which requires a multt-year
dedicated Investment of resources
(staff, tools and funding), which should
come from & combination of public
and private sources and be managed
by the Buffalo Urban Development
Corporation where existing capacity
and expertise can be leveraged.

Allocating project funding through
a competlilve RFP process wuiillizing
explicit criterla is recommended as
well as adhering to the Clity’s RWBE
policies and goals.

Aredevelopmant strategy that focuses
on residential Infill (targated to class
B & C bulidings) is recommended to
bring vacant space off the market
in the short run while enhancing
downtown neighborhoods. A
202: downtown residential market
demand study concluded that 4,225
househoids compeise the potential
downtown resldemtlal market -
signifcantly higher than the 1,315
houscholds identified in the 2004
study, Additionslly, 25% of this
demand comes from outslde of Erle
and Hiagara Counties.

Over thme, additional downtown
residents will increase the demand
for rot=il senvices wiileh in tum fills
storefronts removing still more vacant
spacafrom the marketwhile increasing
vibrancy. This added vibrancy also
will assist In Improving the percsption
of downtown as a sz, secure place to
tive, work and wisit,

To stimulate near-term investments
in this type of redevelopment,
It Is recommended programs
and incentives. be targeted to
strategic mixed use and residential
opportunities. These programs
(funded through both public and
private resources) should be
accompanied by robust investments
in publlic Infrastructure and amenitles,
with public spaces thoughtfully
developed and maintained to
conniact the neighborhioods abutting
downtown to the downtown core
which will further Increase demand for
refafl and a mix of residentlal options.

$5 milllon annually for at least three
yeais from a combination of public
and private sources Is needed for
infrastructure improvements, project
gep financing and staff expertise.
Therefore, a downtown redevelopment
fund should be esteblished to creste
a leng-term comtinuing resource for
downtown development.

Cver the next five years, rssuming tive
recommendations are Implemented,
absorption  of  425,000-808,000
squere fast of office spece, an
additional 500,000-1,000,008 square
feet of residentisf space and the
improvement of 10 city blocks can be
expecied, with an estimated direct
economlc Impact of 700,500 Jobs
and $39 -$78 miilion of investment.

Project participants all recognize that
the outcome of this would require
sdequate resources and sirong
political and civic teadership to be
successiul,

Buffalo Bu(lding Rense | Repor: 2012



Mok downfown moere dracii'c [oexsiang aricd ru.’.'u'r-;h-.‘.q'm'u:..'."

fenanits Wit appropeiale space amd auienities

o Focus resources within the BBRP target area (Queen City Hub strategic investment areas and Larkin
District) for public infrastructure and amenity investments, housing and mixed use developments.

¢ Implement a housing Infill strategy.

o incresse knowledge and data on industry, commercial real estate, and economic development trends
as well as on existing tenant needs to better plan for and meet demznd.

e Develop a comprehensive approach to downtown access {transit, parking ramps and lots, on-street
parking, light rall, pedastrian, bicycie, and other multi modal opportunities).

o Develop a downtown master plan for public Infrastructure and amenities, which is context sensitive
and captures the unique attributes of each downtown district (Theatre, Chippewa, Lower Deiaware, etc.).

’ E.';“.:'IU:I.‘:':.‘ 7l .."I-';Illl:rr-]'“1.|Il|l_lll.1|'.l|llf.l;.|--I;II.II;I.J _Il"-'-'l;'l'."'-l" l-l'”l'lrl J]rl'.i'i']'l'll'_,fl"""“'”f shri e

o House downtown specific resources (dedicated staff, development programs, loans and grants, etc.) in
the Buffalo Urban Development Corporation to leverage its existing expertise and capacity.

o Utilize existing, and add dedicated BUDC staff to stimulate and facilitate development downtown;‘
coordinate between existing economic development entities and downtown stakeholders.

« Utilize clearly defined criteria for allocating resources for public Infrastructure and amenities and for
project gap financing.

3 Buffalo Bullding Reuss | Report 2012



| ] ) 1 R e e e
SEAE LRl e PR T e e T VR, wrd L TLET AT 0

(S davclopnet)

o Eliminate residential parking stall zoning requirements to encourage mixed use.
* Amend NYS Brownfield Clsan-Up program iegisiation to inciude asbestos as a qualifying contaminant.

* Use data and criteria to gulde decision making regarding creating end allocating development

incentives (financlal and non financial).
. Increase code compliance by dedlcating an enforcement officer to the target area and apply 2 more

uniform, rigorous approach.
* Apply new toels for redevelopmant Including New Market Tax Credits, Tax Increment Financing,
condominlum incentive, vacant property registraticn ordinance, and fast trackdng permits, etc.

® Create a continuous funding sourca(s) for downtown development from pubiic and private sourcas for
low interest loans, “soft second loans,” and a revolving loan fund for residential project gap financing.

IS S

grmimtancate thebenrats Of divigtoui fon Unlios, play activities

T * i"mﬁﬂ?ﬂ#*’?’yﬁ&fﬂﬁﬂEﬁﬂ'ﬂrﬂsﬁfmﬂwﬂgﬁ{pﬂ
__M o | ﬂ——l—- .=1—.=—=E————::'

* Utilize BUDC staff capacity to advocate for downtown projects, funding and programs.
° Communicate benefits and *lifestyle® of downtown living and working; I.e. no Broserty tax or
assessment increase, live-work environment, transit access, etc.

® Provide web based “conclerge-like” service for prospective tenants and developers to assist them
through Incentives, identifying avallable space and development opportunities, and market downtown,

* Partner and collaborate with other downtown interests and stakeholders for marketing and promotian.

° Increase the visibility of City of Buffalo economic development programs and efforts,

Buffalo 8ullding Rause | Repori 2012

4



1TARNre =S
- « =
i LEr CREREN .-

Buffalo Building Reuse | Report 2032




Buffale Building Reuse | Report 2012




PE & FOCUS:
TWO TEAMS

Planning Team

7

Buffaio Building Reuse | Report 2012

The Planning Team defined Buffalo’s downtown target area; surveyed tenant
(residential, commercial/office, retali, etc.) space and amenity needs (Interior
space, amenitles, infrastructure, “environment”, police, parking, security, etc);
assessed downtown bultding/space stock against the Queen City Hub Pian to
identify the best uses for bulldings and the potential encumbrances/obstacles
for redeveloping them. The team aiso conducted a downtown residentisl
demand market study and considered the best mix of uses that would encourage
residential Infill of vacent and underutilized commerclal structures in the near
term to help jump start demand,

The Queen City Hub Plan (QHUB), the adopted master plan for Buffalo’s
downtown, was utilized as a basis for the team’s recommendations to target
resources to {ts strategic Investment areas and to use specific criteria to guide
Incentives in order to facilitate retsil, residential and office development
with the greatest Impact. These recommendations do consider the adverse
economic conditions and weak macrosconomic prospects for significant local
and national economic recovery (jobs, wealth creation, investments, etc.) in the
near term. However, they do not include solutions to any individual buRding’s

redevelopment obstacles,
The Queen City Hub Plan
Byffalo’s adopied master plon was
utifized as a basis for the projsct’s
strategies and recommendations,

L




Downtown Market Overview

Downtown has approximately two million square feet of vacant office
empty. This figure does not include the expected vacancles in HSB

space - within that, ten buildings are completely
C Center at the end of 2013, or the approximate

800,000 square feet of vacant space In the Statler (3 of the 19 floors have been recently rehabilitated). Currentdemand
for office space Is Umited (locally and natfonaily) - the average office lease in Buffalo’s market is approximately 6,500

square feet and the 10 year average for office space absorption Is app
absorption figures remain constant, and no tenants depart or down

raximately 160,000 square feet peryear. If annual
size and no new space Is developed, it would take

more than 20 years of positive absarption for vacancy levels to reach a healthler 10% rate.

Supply/Demand

FMzny of the bulldings In the target area are older,
environments! ramedietion concems, cutdated bullding systams,
(if any} to parking. As dlscessions with property owners has indlca

confirmed, these conditions do not
provide an attractive product. Many
potential and existing tenants desire
large/Mexthle fioor plates, as well as
dedicated and secure paridng.

Yet numerous entrepreneurs and

small-to-mid sizetenantshavebecome j‘

Increasingly attracted to some of these
spaces given thelr unique character,
urban context and proximity to multi-
modal transportation. Employers such
as Carmina Wood Morris, and TVGA
Consultants are examples.

An updated downtown residential
market demand study prompted by the
Plamring Team verified thair assertion
that substantial downtown residential
demand exists. Supporting the
targated development of residential
units downtown was therefore
Identifled a5 a strateglc measura to
more aptly match bullding suppty/
stockwith demand, create criticaimass
to support service retall, enhance the
downtown neighborhood, and foster
& 24/7 environment.

have small foor plates and faw windows (narrory bulidinga),
are less energy efflclent, and have limited access
ted and a tenant needs study of over 65 businessas

P W | J

Buffalo Bullding Reuse | Report 2012 8



Tools Team

Buffalo Bullding Reuse | Report2e12

The Tools Team was charged with refining and suggesting tools (monetary
and non-monetary) to encourage redevelopment; ldentlfying arezs of the
development process that work and those to be impraved; and identifying bast
practice modals that can be applied to Downtown Buffalo.

Financing downtown projects - given current economic conditions, building
character, and the cost of renovations- is complex and usually requires a
challenging combination of public and private funding. Thus, this team reviewed
the avallable tools for development, researched new tools and policies, and
studied the process and resources available for economic development within
the core. The team concluded development resources need to be predictable
and dedicated over a multi-year period, tled to a particular geography and
guided by specific and clearly communicated criteria. The resources include
staff, public Infrastructure Investments, and funding (such as a 1-to-1 matching
grant for faasibility studies and the creation cf a revolving loan fund) to assist in

the redevelopment of structures.

The team reviewed best practice examples of other citles which faced simllar
oversupply issues end subsequently improved thelr dowrtowns.

Portiand, OR

.}];" 2 S
720
Mt
-
»
w
L)
g
(-3
~
™ e
REaraphes MewOrimnsld o

Best Practice Downtowns Analyzed



Commonalities Among Best Practice Downtown Redevelopment
Inltiatives:

Management Capacity

Successful downtowns have dedicated management entities, with a wide
range of structures, directly charged with driving development Initlatives.
Cincinnatl’s 3CDC, Baltimore’s Downtown Partnership of Baltimore, and
Philadelphia's Center Cty Philadelphia, and virtually all other best practice
downtowns have dedicated public/private resources and expertise,

Proactive Approach to Development

Dedicated management and resources for downtown development have e
allowed citles to proactively address roadblocks for Investment and make oyt
thelr downtowns attractive and competitive for long-term growth and VAL
development. Cincinnatl’s 3€DC (a non-profit real estate development | 1
and finance organization), and Portiand, Oregon’s PDC (The City’s Urban - £
Renewal Agency) proactively acquire vacant or underutilized property, 1 Wi
undertake predevelopment work, engage developers and contactors, and 7

provide strategically tallored finance tools for downtown redevelopment -
all connected to a strategic plan.

These entitles have brought stabillty to the market and served 25 the
driving cutalyst for pifvate investment. All of the othar best praciice titles
{ncorporate some or ali of these proactive development functions at

varying levels,

L AT | CONDNNATI
Y% | ceatER CITY
it ar | DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATICH

Since 2004, 3CDC has
stebitized, rehabbed and
restored 74 buildings
into over 160 condos, 68
rental units and more
than 91,000 square feet
of commercial space. All
of the other best practice
cities incorporate some
or all of these proactive

Abandoned buildings in Over-the-Rhing were converted into 25 condos and 9,000 sq development functions at
Jtof commereiel retail spoce, The buildings are currently at fill occupansy, (Souree: varying levels

Buffalo Bullding Revsa | Report asta 10



Public Space and infrastructure

Great cltles have attractive, well-
defined public space that establishes
critical Inkages between key areas
and developments, supports a
walkable mixed-use environment,
and provides an atmosphere that
ptiracts and refzins  residents,
businesses, and wvisitors. New and
renovated parks and public spaces
such as Fountain Square in Cincinnati
and Citygarden [n St. Louls have
sparked dramatic private investment,
increasing property values, and
enhancing the vibrancy and Image of
their downtowns.

Dawntown Parinership of
and the Downtown
Memphis Commission have
established detalled streetscape
master plans and work plans as
part of thelr larger comprehensive
Downtown plans In order to
prioritize where public infrastructure
investments will occur, the character
and nature of these investments, and
establish guidelines for budgets and
implementation. Having a strategic,
clearly communicated plan for public
infrastructure development guldes
and attracts private Investment and
development decisions In order
to effectively leverage them for
maximum return on Investment. This
gives developers and property owners
a needed level of clarity and certainty
when it comes to making multi-mfltion
doliar investment declisions.

Resources

Cities across the country have formed innovative public/private
parinerships and brought together progressive funding tools
in order to leverage resources and collectively reposition their
downtowns. The best practice cities studled had a significant
portion of the dedicated funding for downtown redevelopment
committed from other sources including the corporate
community, county, state and federal govemment, and a wide
array of foundation grants.

As beneficlaries of downtown’s success and thelr region’s
abliity to attract talent, private sector corporations,
foundatlons, etc. have Invested In development funds to drive
downtown growth and development. Cincinnati’s corporate
community has put in place a $90 million dollar equity fund
that has been the primary driving force behind 3CDC’s ability

1 Bufful¢ Building Reuse | Report 2012

The
Baltimore

Citygarden)}

B_Efﬂl'e & After st. Lowis Citygarden, a public/private collaboration (Soures:

Baltimore
Inventory and
prioritization of

to progressively revitalize downtown and attract the
24-35 year olds that will provide the workforce for local
employers. The work of the Partnership for Downtown
Baltimore, the Partnership for Downtown St. Lauls, and
the Plttsburgh Downtown Partnership are ait sustained
through corporate support and financing, coupled with
city staff support and funds,

Community Development Block Grarts, TIF districts,
New Markets Tax Credits, Pilot increment Financing,
flexible equity Ffunds, Business improvement District
assessments, and developer service fees are some of
the primary capital and financing that have driven and
maintained long-term, and self-sustaining downtown
development activity.



CHALLENGES
PORTUNITIES

Challenges Facing Downtown

At the tims of Mayor Brown's request to the Partnership, there was
significant anxiety among dewntown stakeholders reganding two primary

dynamics:

1) Unsustainable market saturation and continuing
depression of market rate rents:

The significant volume of additional vacant space that will come online
{with the anticipated vacancies in HSBC Center and the partial renovation
of the Statler) has the potential to overwheim an already over-saturated
downtown office market and further depress downtown market rents,
therefore Umiting bullding owners’ capacity to make recessary upgrades

to be competitive.

2) Lack of strategic, clearly articulated criteria for public
incentives

Sufficlent public Incentives do not exist to redevelop downtown
properiles and there are not ciear criteria available to developers

that communicate how to obtain those incentives which do exist.
Moreover, the absence of a strategic and clearly articulated plan and
criteria far Investment led to a perception of an unlevel playing field
that has deterred prospective new developers from attempting difficult
redevelopment projects.

Bulffalo Building Raus2 | Report zos2




10-Year Average, Class as % of Total Downtown
Commercial Office Market

Building Stock

While these dynamics ane
characteristic of real estate markets
natlonally and especially In older
industrial ¢ities, they have translated
into particular issues for downtown's
building stock. A declining revenue
base, decades of flat rent, and rising
carrying costs have Impacted the
ability of some downtown property
owners to invest, repair and upgrade
thelr properties. The results can be

" in the volume of class B and C 10-Year Average, Commercial Office Market
ulldings that comprise more than
half of the downiown office mariet. Vacancy as % of Class

Vacancy and Absorption

1o-year average office absorption
figures give an overview of the heaith

and condition of the merket 2.3
million sq, ft. of downtown"s 11 million
sq. ft. of office inventory has been

vacanf; an average vacancy rate of
21%, During this same time period, the
average absorption rate for downtown
office space was approximately
161,000 sq. ft. per year. A substantial
portion of recent absorption has been
from existing tenant expansion and
strong growth in the northermn end
of downtown on the Buffalo Nlagara
Medical Campus.

Square Feet (Milllons)

2002 2007 2011

13 Buffalo Bullding Reuse | Report 2012




Overthe past five
(5)years alone,
mare than $1 billion
n private and
nublic investment
has occuried in
dowitown, with
more than $1 billion
inplanned o1

proposed projects.

Recent Downtown Growth & Investment

Over the past five years, more than $1 billion In private and public investment
has been made in downtown, with more than $1 bilion more in proposed
projects. In zo10, the Clty of Buffalo Invested approximately $5 million In
fax incentives and approximately $340,000 in downtown Infrastructure.
Between 2011-2013 approximately $34 million will be Invested in downtown
Infrastructure, primarily along Ellicott Street on the Buffalo Niagara Medical
Campus, and to return automotive traffic to the 500 and 600 blocks of Main
Street, as well as to lower Main Strest at Canalside.

Buffalo Bullding Reuse | Raport 2012 14



Recent Residential Growth
Downtown

Residential growth and development
has been galning traction, as
approximately 1,000 new residentlat
units have come online within the
past 5 years. These projects have
been adaptive reuse projects in the
traditional Central Business District,
plus a few new-build residentfal
projects at Erie Basin Marina. Nearly
ail of the rental units in downtown are
at or near full occupancy, while the
majority of mutti-family for.purchase
units {condos, etc.) are selling well.

Local & National Trends Driving
Downtown Growth

|
i, i
! < o - /. o B el T
i‘. .. &) LY
{ % -Fﬁb }“I 0 @‘— ] -'_» 5
- Bl = Voan
spie bop é. el .ﬂ" -y i
\‘.‘" el B v v
- 9 ilff :h;ji- R Sl B
- " “H;,{*‘:L-’l
LT R LY
b '?‘ b W > ".z t l
3 ST }1
sl b "\. ] g = -
w4
> \ f )fr 'j‘ [ ] i
LN g B

Natlonai demographic trends and Hfestyle preferences are driving the growth and revitailzation of cities and downtowns
2¢r085 the country. Baby boomers bom between 1946-1964 (approx. 77 milllon); and #ililennials born between 1977-1996
(approx. 78 mililon), represent the two largest demographic groups In the country’s history, As Baby Boomers retire and
downsiza and Millennlals seek out vibrant urban areas, both groups are looking to relocate to dense, walkable areas that
are in close proximity to entertainment and sesvices. Natlonal real estate forecasts such as the Urban Land Institute’s
(UL) Emerging Trends reports refiect this dynamie, asseriing that downtown residential markets will continue to galn

strength Into the foreseeable future,

Residential Demand &
Potential

An updated 2011 Downtown Buffalo
Resldential Market Demand study
supports these trends locally and
asserts the potential market for
downtown living has grown from
1,315 households slnce 2004 when
the last market demand study was
completed, to 4,225 households
today. Additionally, a5% of this
potential market comes from outside
Erle and Niagars counties. Assuming
normai capture rates (between 2.5%-
10% depending on residential type),
the study states downtown has the
potential to absorb between 161-
323 new units each year over the
next five years. 76% of this market is
estimated to be younger singles and
couples, while 19% is estimated to
be comprised of empty-nesters and
retirees.

15 Buffele Bullding Reuse | Report 2012

. ___Housing Type as % of Potential Market =

X%
R e . -, R . =
. i .

Demographic as % of Potential Market

[ vusgurSingesCouples [} Brpyestendiutinge [} agnoc »ren Tadidond




Growth in Regional Target
Industries

Additionally, a handful of large and
mid-size employers have relocated
or continue to expand In downtown
Buffale. Growth on the Buffalo
Niagara Medical Campus and In the
Larkin District reflects job growth in
regfonal target cluster industries of
life sclence and professional services,
facllitating both state-of-the-art new
construction such as UB/fKaleida's
$291 million Gates Vascular Institate,
and the rehabllitation of older and
underutflized buildings such
Larkin Development’s $12 million
rehabliitation of the 600,000 sq
foot Larkin at Exchange Bullding and
the neighboring Scheeffer Building
that houses First Niagara Bank’s
headquarters.

Small Business and
Entrepreneurs

Small-to-midsized basinesses and
entrepreneurs also have begun to
redevelop portions of downtown;
incubator space Is now avaliable at
Main Washington Exchange and Main
Street Studios on the 500 blockof Main
Street, while firms such as Carmina
Wood Morris, TVGA Consultants, and
Ricotta & Visco have or are in the
process of rehabilitating smaller, 3-6
story buildings along Main Street.

Retail and Restaurants

New restaurants and retall
establishments aiso have slowly
appeared as part of larger, mixed-
use residential projects scattered
throughout downtown. These Include
Della Terra Restaurant I the Avant,
just Vino in the Granite Works, and
the cluster of retail establishments
in the Ellicott Street Commons on
Washington Street. The completion of
the Hotel Lafayette In the spring and
the first floors of the Statler will add
additional new retail downtown.

Buffalo Bultding Reuse | Reportzosz

16



Make doumtotri miard atfraciee to'easting and fulie

potential fonants (tesilential, commenen

petall ete with approprote space and ameniis

Focus resources within the BBRP strategic investment areas

Heep resources focused/(Imited to the strateglc Investment arsas defined In the BBRP target areas (Bounded by North
Street on the north, a few blodks zast of Michigan Avenue on the east, the waterfront on the south, and Delaware
Avenue on the west) a5 well as “Larkinville.” Within this geography, Invest in priority, strategic sites for appropriate,

highest impact uses,

implement a housing infill strategy

Office leasing cannot revitalize downtown; especially when the average individual commercial lease Is 6,500 sq fit

and the average annual office space absorption is 161,000 sq ft. implementing & residential infill strategy (Including
assessing a marketing campalgn for residential development which focuses on redeveloping existing space (or new
construction when It occurs as part of a demolition plan or Is Infill development on 2 vacant lot n one of the target ereas
for residential use) Is recommended as the bast opporiunity for.absorbing existing vacant and underutilized space and

can assist in improving demand for new office and ratall uges.

o Terget investments for resldential development in areas zs identified in the Queen City Hub In ovder to create
critical mass that supports neighborhood service retail

o Encourage a2 mix of development types (live work, loRt, condo, etc.) and developer models (not for profit, public/
private partnerships, etc.) to provide urban living opportunities for the full range of prospectiva tanants

o Focus resources toward repurposing outdated class B and Cspace
o Work with downtown employers to develop employer assisted housing programs

o Consider developing a “Housing Campaign™

7 Buffalo Building Reuse | Report 2012



Genesee Gateway
Rendering of potential streetsoape improvements
(Fource: Wendal -Duchscherer)

Invest in public infrastructure and amenities

There should be an Increase In investments for public infrastructure and amenites; & master plan for infrastructure
improvements that captures the particular attributes of each district dowmntown {Theatre District, Chippewa, etc.); 2
“class A" environment to retain and attract class A office, residential and retail; a streetscape/improvement plan that
builds a sense of place and cansistency across downtown which connects downtown residents and workers to green
space, existing public {pocket) parks and abutting nelghborhoods.

Increased collaboration Is recommended with existing entities managing specific areas of downtown: the Buffaio
Niagara Medical Campus, the Erie Canal Harbor Development Corporation, and those in the Larkin District. Dedicated,

downtown focused development staff can best leverage eilsting expertise and obtain additlonal resources for
Infrastructure Improvements to connect those areas to the downtown core. Improving the infrastructure and
streetscape will encourage housing, mixed-use and retali opportunities in the core. BUDC should engage Buffalo Place
for Infrastructure malntenance as redevslopment projects and streetscape improvements are planned,

Improve data and tracking of real estate and economic development trends, as well as existing and
future tenant needs, specifically within targeted regional clusters and among entrepreneurs

Planning for and implementing the right tenant mix Is critical to long term sustainabllity and nelghborhood buliding.
Maintalning current data on downtown building uses and tenant needs is essential to creating the nacessary tenant
mix, density, place-making, and Incentives for catalytic projects that will yield desired outcomes. These efforts should
be done by BUDC, In collaboration with the Mayor's Office of Strategic Planning, and downtown stakeholders such as

Buffalo Place and the Building Owners and Managers Assoclation.

o Develop and maintaln a database of current tenant mix and regutarly survey employers and residents to obtain an
understanding of tenant needs

0 Coordinate with regional econamic development practitioners and real estate professionals to understand space

demands and trends

o Create a database of dmlopment activity and real estzaia indicators

o CompRe informaifon Into an annual Downtown Buffalo Market Trends Analysls to inform opportunitias and strategic
responses

Buffalo Buflding Reusa | Reportsstz 18



Develop a comprehensive approach to address downtown access
- transit, parking ramps and lots, on-street parking, light raii,
pedestrian, bicycle and other multimodal opportunities

o Define a “Transit Oriented District” (l.e. a defined geography within a
specified distance from transit/light rall) Incentives to encourage mixed use
developmaent to occur 2t or near metro rall stations

Transit Orlented Development
o Bulld and 2xpend peridng capacity In critical srees downtown as identlfied  yyangr ariented development tncorporates

by the 2008 Desman Comprehensive Parking Assessment completed forthe  and encourages high density mixed-use

City. The report notes the existing financial capability to construct up to four  development (residential, cormercial,
new ramps before 2020 Jirst floor retail) around transit stops.,
Davelopment incentives should promote
n_u'md-m development grow;ll.c Eg:r
o Increase monthly parking rates in City managed ramps to be comparable to reinforce relative proximity to
those for private facilities redl and complmant &W@’ Buyffalo

o Work wkh the NYSDOT on traffic calming the Oak/Elm comidor in
order tc encourage pedesirian access between downtown and abutting

neighborhoods

o Focus on developing walkability of downtown and multi-modal connections
to surrounding nelghborhoods (Allentown, Canalside under the t-go, Ellicott
Park and the Michigan Street corridor, Frultbelt, West Village, etc.)

o Establish a moratorium on permits for new surface parking lots and
establish regulations to improve the appearance of existing parking lots

Complete Streets

Complete streets are designed with ofl
ages and transportation modes in mind
such as automotive, pedestrion, fransit

cte Streeis Legislgtion:
- Gity of Buffulo: Enacted in May 2008
- New York Stote: Enacted in August, 2011

esm—-

1

Restoring Pedestrian and Multi-Modal Between
Downtown and Surrounding Neighborhoods

L]

Eim Streef |j Canalside
3 lanes of one-way { The I-90 qnd HSBC
traffic promote high ~ & Center serve as
travel speeds and physical and mental
serve as barrisr 4 barriers between
between dountown © large investments
and adjacent at Canalside and
neighborhoods to the = doumtown.
east.

Buffelo Bullding Reuse | Report 2012



Estaliish @ “smurt" devolopment process and

management canavity

Strategically Leverage Public /Private Financing and Development

Plans prepared for downtown development aver the past decade, Including the national
award winning Queen City Hub, have identifled key opportunity areas and stressed the
need to strategically leverage investments and resources (both public and private) to

facititate development.

The Buffalo Niagara Medical Campus, Canalside, and the Larkin District have demonstrated
that development success can occur through the implementstion of a strategic and
coordinated development vision averseen by a dedicated management organization. The
results have been predictable and clearly communicated opportunities for investment,

development, and a reglonally recognizable brand competitiveness.

House downtown specific resources (staff, programs and
funding) in the Buffalo Urban Development Corporation (BUDC)

0 Alsp, expand the expertise st BUDC with acsistanca from economic
deveiopment consaltants such as the National Development Council to
Include equity/project finarcing counsel (both public Infrastructure and

project gap financing)

Utilize existing, and add dedicated BUDC staff with specific
development expertise to focus on stimulating and facilitating

development downtown

A total of two: (2) full-time posltions are recommendad with a specific focus on the target

area;
0 1 FTE: Staff/Project Director (axdsting position)
0 1 FTE: infrastructure Planning & Implementation project manager (rew position)

Allocate $1,000,000 over a three year perfod. The additional management capacliy should
become self-supporting from fees associated with the loan and grant programs as well as
from potential dedicated revenue from the Increase in tax base,

Add or dedicate code enforcement officer to downtown target area

o Allow greater code variances for devalopment projects thet utiilze epargy efficlent
systems and/or LEED buildings

o Strengthen code requirements for boarding up vacant buildings

Buffalo Bullding Reuse | Raport zea2




Develop clearly defined criteria for allocating resources for public
infrastructure and amenities and for project funding/gap financing

investments in projects and public infrastructure and amenities shouid be based

on how they perform against accomplishing specific outcomes and upon ciear,

logical criteria to achieve the long-term goals.

The project recommends the following criteria be utilized to facilitate local, as

well 25 outside Investment in downtown.

Resldential In-Rll criteria:

lzomd
O oty
o 25 Dy e e 22010 g

o Proximity to:
- Existing residentlal clusters and office tenant and
ratail density
- Light raft and public transportation
- Existing market drivers (Alientown & BNMC)
o Existing vacant space
o Adaptive reuse opportunities
o Adaptive reuse of historic structures
o Vacant lot/Infill opportunities

2 Buffalo BuRding Reuse | Report2o12

-

l.....j atr i e e

;T
| ‘ I-.‘n.-!t;-v-.;\—'- é":l\‘%_'_.. f;."".-'l?' L
FiE Jare i anenf o ] f{,}~
J 1} F L el b b
e %h!: '.‘m i {_{’ ‘
st N

24
I ]

i e A B

N 56 i e
b -l R P R
.

¢ Bullds critical mass and nelghborhood fabric

o Fecuses on gateway/high vistbility locations

o Utliizes urban scale, context, and design features
comizatibie with tize Grean Code

o Reuses and/or develeps existing, ist feor retail
space

o Locates In arazs with high pedestrian volume

o Serves resldential, visitor 2nd employment needs

o Considers (ocal, unique, and diverse establishments



o Allocate funds through a competitive RFP process utilizing explcit criterla recommended fherein, and adhering to
the City’s MWBE and workforce policles and goals.(minorfty owned business must perform 25% of the work and an
additional goal that a woman owned business must perform 5% of the work)

Commercial office criteria:

y Iy i
b [ el
"*it"’h-hi ok

!." .élt'!!"'klg -

sl A

o Deals with gaps in the urban fabric; parking lots and
vacant parcels (Je. (ower Delaware)

0 Builds on recent investments

o Projects that utflize lots that provide new construction
infill opportunities for larger floor plates

o Pravides parking with new construction

o Adaptive reuse - upgrades existing bulldings
o Reduces surface parking

o Considers net new downtown tenant growth

o Bulids on strengths and private investment
0 Attracts additional development

o Gateway location

© Maintains consistency in design/image

o Addresses security/police need

o Provides “Class A" Infrastructure

0 Provides connectivity of infrastructure

Buffalo Bullding Reuse | Reportzozz 22



23

Detelop effective tiols tat erooibage investmentind

redeyelnpment

Improve existing programs and create new funding mechanisms
to facilitate downtown development

o Amend RYS Brownfizld Clean-Up Program emabling legislation to include asbestos as an ellgible Qualifying
Contamingnt 8 reauthorize the Program or develop a stand-zione pregram for asbestes remediation tax credlts. Cap
credit aliocations and tle eligibility to disiressed cansus tracts

o Eliminate two stall minimum residential zoning parking requirement to be the maximum, or remove altogether

o Push for pessage of Improved Tax Increment Financing legistation through the New York State Assembly (Ao5206).
and ectzblish a TIF district around downtown target area

o Pursuz New Markets Tax Credit application with an agency such as ECIDA
o Create a grant program with public and private funds to support a match for feasibility and pre-development costs

o Develop a low-interest Downtown Revolving Loan Fund, from public and prlvate resourcas, to serve as a soft-second
for project dzbt finance

o Cregta condominium Incentive to encourage this rasidential alternative

o Work with utility companies to create low cost programs
for target district and help fund development projecis.

iy |
o Aggressivaly pursue flexible transit orlented development l“ “““ﬁ‘& Lk
dollars from faderal transportation funds 4 : LEE

o Raise or remove the $5 mililon NYS Historlc Tex Credit cap

o Create a tenant improvement loar program (from public
and private sources) for capital expenditures at a low
interest rate to atiract start-up companies and small
businesses that heve less access to private capltal

o Establish a State definition of Urban Core/Village Center
_project(s) to be used to amend Industrial Development
Agency statute, and other State programs, that allows for
broader program eligibility to encourage mixed use and
residential redevelopment

T‘shman Buudlng anmdybeinpmmﬁemdﬁ:r =
mived-use development opportunities.

Buffalo Building Revsa | Reportzoia



Create a dedicated revenue stream to fund downtown development
- project financing and public infrastructure and amenities

Although market demand exists for residential development, noted high cost structural issues require iarge upfront
Investments that are difficult to finance, as they are not financially feasible with current market rental rates. A 2001 study
by the American Institute of Architects indicated a $50,000 - $70,000 financing gap per residentfal unit in downtown
Buffalo - resulting from low rental rates and the high cost of redevelopment.

Most successtul projects have had, and will continue to depend on complex financing solutions that Include = blend of
conventional financing and some level of public 2ssistance {tax credits, abatements, low-Interests loans, grants, etc.) to

bring them to fruition.

* Establish a multl-year dedicated annual fund of $5 miltion (public and private resources) to fund project zap financing,
grants and public Infrastructure Investments

Most of the best practice clties studied utilized a dedicated source of funding for sustainable, long term redevelopment.
Options used in other best practice clties and Identifled by profect volunteers that should he considered for and sppiled

to downtown Buffalo include:

0 Redirect a percentage of Erle County PILOT fees recelved by the City/Cotuniy into 2 Downtown Redevelopment Fund
© Dedicate and bond a portion of BCAR"s surplus to public Infrastructure and amenity projects within the target area
o Utilize a portion of the Class | and Class )i 3% Utility Service Tax to fund redevelopment downtown

o Aliecate a perceniage of the Increase In tax revenue from the farget area to a Downtown Redevelopment Fund, as a
"‘pay-as-y_ou-go" nF

0 Allocate resources from the sale of Cliy owned properties (such as Market Arcade) to downtown redevelopment fund

o Approzch other downtown stakeholders (banks, foundations, employers, utflity companlas, etc.) for additional
support to Implement recomimaendations; parsonnal and overhead costs, revolving lvan fund contributions, cne to ona

matching grants, ote
Institute Vacant Property Registration Ordinance

Over 549 municipalities in the U.S. have implemented or proposed soma form of a vacant property registration ordinance
in order to discourage blight and neglect that significantiy contribute to negative perceptions of downtown.

Thirteen municipalities in New York State have mpiemented the ordinance, including New York Clty and numerous
upstate citles, Property owners must submlt a vacant building plan within certaln time frames with benchmarks to elther;
Demolish the building, leave vacant (and reasons why), rehablifitate the building. The ordinance requires building owners
to meet with the proper development entlty to assess available programs amd incentives,

Buffalo Bullding Rouse | Report 2012

a5



Citles across the country have ldentified ways to connect and market their assets in order to effectively promote

sustained growth and development of their downtown cores. Cities such as Plttsburgh (Golden Triangle) and
Philadelphla (Center City) have established a strong brand to define thelr downtowns, and to create context for place-
based promotions and marketing.

In Buffalo, various organizations and employers are undertaking marketing Initiatives that are elther geared towards
promoting downtown or their business/service in downtown. A marketing meeting and subsequent discussions with 2
wide range of marketing professionals representing downtown-centric organizations, businesses, real estate brokers,
and tourism speclalists identified three primary perceptions that resonate across the spectrum of potential tenants,
residents, visitors and shoppers. A survey of over 65 businesses in the region revealed the same top perceptions of

downtown:
1) Dawntown [s not safe
2} Accessing and navigating downtown is an issue and a hassle

3) Downtown Is *dead,” k's wom and not vibrant

Downtown employers and other organizations alike must overcome these perceptions for thelr continued growth and
success.

Partner and collaborate with other downtown interests and stakeholders for joint downtown
marketing and promotions

o Convene a downtown marketing committee In coordination with other downtown stakeholders (e. Buffalo Place,
BNMC, ECHDC, BNE, etc.) to develop a markating plan and oversee marketing efforts

o Impiement an umbrelia marketing effort that brands dewntown as cne community with a commen vision and
leverages the coflective efforts and resources of anchor institutions and organizations

» Promote and highlight progress and accomplishments downtown
« Comprehenslvely market and promote downtown's assets, attributes, and quality of life

= Couniers negative perceptions

o Dedicate BUDC staff to advocate for downtown projects, funding and programs

Coordinate with existing entities and stakeholders to establish a comprehensive web portal to
serve as the *go-to” point for everything downtown

o Collectively promote downtown flive/work/play lifestyie

o Catalogue and develop a search engline for real estate and space [istings (residenttal, commercial, retall}

o Market Information on available tax programs, incentives, ete, for developers, businesses, and residents

For zxample, the City of Buffaio has a predictable tax rate which should be promoted (26.2% for commercial
and 15.3% for residential). Beginning In 2011, both property tax and assessment rates have been frozen for a three

year period.
a5 BuPalo Bullding Peuse | Report 2032



Over initial five year period
Assuming resouress from a varlety of sources are leveraged and utllized witin the project target zroes; City, Coumty,

Siate, Fedeva!, foundations and private sector sources.
£, Low Im
Residentlal* - Assumes absorption of 300 units annually, averaged at 1,000 sq ft/unit = 500,000 &q ft
Commerclal - Assumes absorption of 35,000 sq ftannually = 425,000 sq ft

2 . :_' Atk !—‘.L‘EL‘L'-'::'
Residential* - Assumes bsorption of 200 unlts annually, average at 1,000 sq ft/unit = s,e00,500 sgfe
Commerciai - Assumes absorption of 161,000 sq ft annually (10-year downtown annual average) = 809,000 sq

For this to occur, edequate resources to be successfiul 2s wel as strong political and civic keadership are required. Thesa
recommendations aie created to bulld on the recent deveicpment momentum in strategic manner that leverages the

Public infrastructure and amentty Improvements are assumed to cost approximately $1,000,000 per block, with a total of
10 blocks to be Improved over the initlal 5.yeass. It Is recommended the Investments occur In the target area 2nd adhere

to tha specific eriteria delineated above,

Strategically Repositioning Vacant Space - 5 Year Projections
-'mm o e e <

Buffalo Building Reuse | Report 2032

26



é Construction Related Jobs and Employment
(Over5 Years)

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1,200 1400 1,600 1,800 2,000

I g R e e

e e e e ——— =

Projected Increase in Property and Sales Tax from
New Residents Downtown

2:5 llll“'oll- e e ittt *?--‘7.” TS
2 miflion

— —

1.5 miliion

7
...,::.:'::/im__

IMPACT IMPACT

L Sales Taxes
% Property Taxas

Buffcio Bullding Reuse | Report 2012




Indirect Jobs and Employment Resulting from
500-1,000 New Resldential Units Downtown

High Impqct Projections

e 2 100 150 200 250 300 250 400 450 - S00

Potential Population increase in BBRP Target Area with the
Addition of 500-1000 New Residential Units

] MMM

500 new units* VUV VTV AR AR

— NIV AR A A AR

cument

| A
of Central

Business

' . District

s el AR

Buifalo Bullding Reuse | Report 2012 a8




RESOURCES:

3CDC | Cincinnati Center City Development Corporation. Web. 2022, <http://www.3cdc.org/>,
American Fact Finder. U.S. Census Bureau. Web. <http:/ /factfinder2.census.gove.

Amendments to Tax iIncrement Finance Law, Assembly 5296 (2014), Print.

Broberg, Brad. Partnership for Downtown Affordability. On Common Ground {(2012): 22-25. Print,

Center Cliy District / Central Philadeiphia Development Corporation Of Philsdelphis. Web. 2014. <hitp://wunw.

centercityphlla.org/>.
Chan Krieger Sleniewlcz, and Gamble Associates, and Sasaki and Madden Planning Group. Four Nelghborhoods, One

Community. Prepared for the Buffalo Nlagara Medical Campus. December 1, 2010,

Clty of Buffalo, Mayor's Office of Strategic Planning. City of Buffalo Develapment Profile 2011. 2011.

City of Buffalo, UB, School of Architecture and Planning, Urban Deslgn Project, and Buffalo Place Inc. The Queen City
Hub: A Reglonal Action Plan for Downtown Buffalo. Rep. Vol. 2. Buffalo: City of Buffalo, 2003. Print.

Complete Streets, Web. 28 Dec. 2011. <http://www.compietestreets.org/>.

Desman Associates. Comprehensive Parking Assessment: Downtown Buffalo, New Yori:. Frepared for the City of
Buffalo Board of Parking. December 2008,

The Downtown Development District of New Orleans. Web. zo11. <http://neworleansdowntown.com /.

The Downtown Parinership of Baltimore. Web. 2011, <http://godowntownbaltimore.com/s.

Downtown Memphis Commission. Web. 2o11. <http://www.downtownmemphis.com/>.

Erle County Industrial Development Agency. IMPLAN data - economic Impact (sales and property tax) of residentiod unit

development downtown
Federal Transit AdmInistration. City of Buffalo Main Strect Multi-Modal Access and Revitalization Project -

29 Buffalo Building Reuse | Report 2012



Environmental Assessment. Prepared for the City of Buffalo, NFTA, Buffalo Place, NYSDOT. April 200¢.
Futureworks. New Economic Development Resources for New Challenges and Opportunities. Rep. 2009. Print,
Greater Buffalo Niagara Regional Transportation Council, and Buffaio Place Inc. 1998 Downtown Employee Survay. Rep.

1999. Print.

J-R. Filkallo Realty, inc. Downtown Buffolo Office Market Overview, 2011,
Mayor Stephzanie Rawlings-Blake’s Dawntown Task Force. Developing Strategles to Strengthen the Downtown Office

Market by Attracting New Business, Stimuiating job Growth & Spuring New investment. Prapared for the Cliy of
Baltimore. April 6, 2011.

Tha Partnership for Downtown St. Louls, Wab. 2011. thttp://www.downtownst!.org/Homepage.aspzo,

The Pittsburgh Downtown Partnership. Web. 2011, <http:/ fwww.downtownplitsburgh.com/

The Portiand Development Commission. Web. 2012. <http:/fwww.pdc.us .

Reglonal/Urben Dasign Assistance Team of the American Institute of Architects. Buffalo R/UDAT. Rep. zo01. Print.

Urban Design Project, University at Buffalo, School of Architecture and Planning. Concepi Document - Redevelopment of
500 Block of Main Street. Prepared for Natlonal Grid. 2007.

Urban Design Project, University at Buffale, School of Arciiltacture and Planning, and ievin Connor & Associates, The
Larkin District Pian. Preparad for CityView Properties. July 2005.

Urban Land Institute. Emerging Trends In Real Estate, 2011,

Urban Land Institute. Emerging Trends in Real Estate, 2012.

Vacant Property Registration Ordinances. Szfeguard Proparties. Web, <hittp:/[www2.sefeguard propertles.com/vpr/city?
S=8stm@&pp=208&tmLb=gpmoli=208id=gsdun),

Van Gleson, John. Partnership at Work. On Common Ground (2012); 36-41, Print.

Zimmermazn/Volk Asscciates, inc. Residential Market Potential for Downiésn Bujfalo. Prepared for Davelopment
Downtown, Inc. December 2004.

Zimmerman/Volk Associates, Inc. Update of Rasidentiof Mariet Potential for Downtown Buffalo. Prepared for the Clty of

Buffelo, Empire State Development Corporation, and Natfonal Fuel. December 2011,

Buffelo Bullding Reuse | Report2o1z 30



reuse

Lo and b










Draft of 9/12/13 Page 10f 12

Buffaio Urban Deveiopment Corporation
Buffalo Building Reuse Loan Program
Policy Guldelines and Operating Plan

Section 1. GENE
1.1 Policy Guidelines and Operating Plan. The Policy Guidelines and Operating Plan (the

"Plan”) is adopted by the Buffalo Urban Development Corporation { *BUDC") Board of Directors
and is intended fo serve as the primary administrative documant for the Buffalo Bullding Reuse
Loan Program (the "Program"). Any changes to the Plan must also be adopted by the Board of

Directors.

1.2 Objectives. The primary objective of the Program is to facilitats the development and
adaptive reuse of vacant or undenutilized bulldings in targeted downtown areas of tha City of
Buiffalo (the "Clty") by assisting Projects that have interim financing needs due to extraordinary
capital costs and/or timing issues. Examples of extraordinary capital costs may include, but are
not limited to those involving historic preservation, environmental remedigtion, site
improvements, demolition and clearance, parking and general structural issues. Examples of
timing issues may Include, but are not limited to the funding of historic or other tax credits,
grants or aother subsidies from public or private sources, gaps between available construction
and permanent mortgage financing and extended leasing periods for commercial space.

Secondary objectives of the Program include the creation of construction and permanent
employment opportunifies, expansion of the City's property tax base, increased property tax
revenues and increased sales tax revenues.

1.3  Form of Assistance. The Program will provide assistance only in the form of secured
loans.

Section 2. ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS
2.1  Eligibie Activities.

(a)  The project to be assisted with Program financing (the “Project”) must involve the
redevelopment of vacant or underutilized buildings located within one of the

downtown Buffalo target areas defined at Appendix A of the Plan.

(b)  Assisted Projects should include the development of residential units as a
significant part of the Project and may also include commercial and/or retail uses.

{c) Aclivities assisted with Program financing may include any of the following:
. Property acquisition

® Demolition & clearance
° New construction



Draft of 9/12/13 Page 2 of 12

Renovation

Site improvements including parking, landscaping, fencing and lighting
Environmental remediation

Professional and financing fees

Interim and other soft costs

2.2  Eliglble Borrowsrs. Eligible borrowers include individuals, sole proprietorships,
partnerships, for-profit and not-for-profit corporations, limited liebility companies, limited liability
parinerships, cooperatives, and any other legally recognized form of business.

23  Bank Participation. Loans will only be made in conjunction with a lead construction loan
provided by a commercial bank, other financial institution, or privats lender acceptable to the
BUDC Board of Directors (the “Lead Lender”). Program lcans may be subordinated in lien and
priority of payment to that of the Lead Lender where necessary.

Section 3. PROGRAM STANDARDS

3.1  Program Financing Amount. Program assistance must be no greater than the minimum
amount necessary to establish financial feasibility and/or fill a financing gep as determined by
the BUDC underwriting analysis. Applicants must provide documentation satisfactory to BUDC
that all other private and pubiic sources of debt and equity, including grants and other
assistance from potential funding sources recommendsd to the applicant by the BUDC, have
either been maximized or are Inappropriate, unaffordable or otherwise unavailable.

3.2 Minimum Amount of Program Assistance. Program assistance will not be considered

where the amount of the required financing is less than $100,000.

3.3  Maximum Amount of Program Assistance. The Program does not establish a policy

regarding the maximum amount of Program assistance available. However, BUDC will, from
time to time at its discretion, establish maximum amounts of assistance based on the total
amount of Program funds available and the demand for such funds.

Section 4. LENDING POLICIES

41 Temmof Loans. Program leans are intended to be shori-term gap financing with a pre-
Identifled take-out from an institutional funding source. Program loan terms will be as short as
necessary to achieve a take-out (generally the closing of a permanent mortgage loan), but may
be approved for an extended period in consideration of the need to reach financial stabilization
as a condition of the take-out financing.

42 |nterest Rate. The standard interest rate charged for the use of Program funds shall be
the prime raie pius 1%. The Loan Committee may review and recommend that the Board adjust
the standard interest rate based on such factors as the risk of default, the valus of security,
prevailing commercial lending rates, and the project’s impact on the objectives of the Program.

43 Repayment Terms. Program loans wiil be interest-only during the construction period
and until such date as BUDC may establish for conversion to an amortizing loan. itis



Draft of 9/12/13 Page 30of 12

understood that due to the nature of the Program, repayment terms may in some instances
extend beyond & typical conversion date for conventioral financing and may be subject to
hegotiation with other participating lenders. In all cases, the repayment tarms will be
established by the BUDC Board baead on the Project's projectsd ability to repay the loan, the
projected value of the collateral and other security, and the overall risk assumed by the

Program.

44  Security. BUDC will determine the required security for each loan on a case-by-case
basis basad on such factors as the risk of default, the nature and velue of the sacurity, and the

position of the Program in relation to other lenders. In determining the appropriate security, the
following will apply:

(a)  BUDC will require a mortgage securlty interest in the Project financad with
Program funds. Other assets of the Borrower or Project principal(s) may be

required as additional security at BUDC's option.

(b)  Based on its risk assessment of the Project, BUDC shall require the psrsonal
guarantes from persons or entities owning at least 20% of the ownership
interests in the Borrower. The personal guarantee of other sharsholders,
members, officers, principals or partners may aiso be required at the discretion of
BUDC.

{c) Unless circumstances ctherwise dictate, the collateral, guarantees, and other
security for the Program loan will mirror the terms required by the Lead Lender.

4.5 Subordination.

(a)  BUDC will allow a subordination of Program security interests to the Lead
Lender(s) where necessary fo facilitate the maximum financial participation by

the private lenders.

(b)  The standing of BUDC's financing relative to other public or guasi-public lenders
will be negotiated on a case-by-case basis.

(c) BUDC will generally require subordination to the Program loan of notes payable
to any officer, owner, or similarly affillated party to the Borrower or developer.

(d)  BUDC may require the execution of intercreditor agreements in instances where
multiple lenders exist. The use and form of such agreements will be the
responsibility of the BUDC Attomey.

Section 5.  APPLICATION PROCESSING

6.1  Loan Applications. Loan applications will only be acceptad for projects that have been
selected through the BUDC's Request for Proposals process and where a written invitation to
submit a loan application has been provided to the applicant. Applications for Program
financing must include all of the information required by the Program Application Form and any
additional information as may be reasonably requested by the BUDC.



Draft of 9/12/13 Page 4 of 12

5.2  Application Fee. An applicafion fee of $250,00 will be charged for the submission of a
BUDC loan application and wili be in consideration of BUDC’s application processing costs. The
fee is non-refundable, but will be applied to the commitment foe (see Section 6.2).

5.3  Application Processing. The processing of loan applications will generally consist of the
following:

(a) Review applications for completeness and procure appropriate additional
information;

{b) Confirmation that the proposed project meets the Program eligibility criteria;

(c) Determine economic feasibility, perform credit analysis, and assess risk;

(d)  Determine amount and terms of Program financing, including appropriate
security; and

{(e) Prepare written report to the Loan Committee summarizing the review process
and providing recommendations as appropriate.

5.4  Bridge Loan Underwriting Standards. In analyzing loan applications that contemplate
the Program loan being used only during construction and to be fully repaid prior to or
concurrent with the project being put into service, the BUDC will generally apply the following

standards:

(a) Loans will only be made in conjunction with a lead institutional construction
lender.

(b)  Permanent financing for the project must be committed in a form and substance
satisfactory to the BUDC.

(c) Tax credits and other sources of grants and equity must be committed in a form
and substance satisfactory to the BUDC.

(d) There are no apparent issues that would delay the timely completion of the
project.

(8) The BUDC analysis of the project indicates that the project is financially feasible
and that security for the Program loan is sufficient.

5.5 Morigage Lean Underwriting Standards. !n analyzing foan applications that contemplate
the Program loan remaining unpaid for any pariod of time after the project has been put into

sarvice, the BUDC will generally apply the following standards:
(a) Loan-to-Value Ratio

The total project debt (defined as all principal debt to be serviced by cash flow
from the assisted project) should not exceed ninety percent (90%) of the



Draft of 9/12/13 Page 50of 12

appraised value of the property being assisted after the completion of the project.

{b)  Debt Coverage

Projected annual cash fiow for the project upon stabllization (as determined by
the BUDC) should exceed the total annual project debt by & minimum of 1.2x in
each year of operations.

{¢) General

The BUDC financial analysis of the project will determine project feasibility and
assess risk in a manner consistent with standard institutional lending policies. In
addition, the standards listed at Section 5.4 above shall be applied to Program
financing provided during the construction period.

56  Loan Committes. The BUDC Board of Directors has established a Loan Committee to
review loan applications and to make recommendations to the BUDC Board. Such
recommendations should include proposed foan terms including interest rate, term, repayment
schedule, security, and any applicable covenants and special conditions. No loan may be
presented to the BUCC Board for action without = review and recommendation(s} by the Loan
Committes, unless otherwise provided by Board resolution. The Loan Committee will also be
responsible for reviewing and making recommendations to the BUDC Board as apprepriate
regarding loan portfolio management Issues (see Saction 7).

6.7  Loan Approvgl. The BUDC Board shall have sole authority to approve Program loans.
Such authority shall include the commitment to lend Program funds, the interest rate(s) to be
charged, the repayment terms, and the requisite securlty for the loan. The application of other
appropriate conditions of lending and covenants of the Borrower may, at the Board's option, be
delegated to the BUDC Attorney with input from the Loan Committee and BUDC staff.

58  Lean Declination.

(a) Loan appiications may be declined by the BUDC Presidaent or Vice President
based on a lack of application compieteness or a failure to meet the eligibility
criteria pursuant to Sections 5.3(a) and 5.3(b) of this Plan respectively.

(b)  The Loan Committee may decline to approve a loan if the Committee detsrmines
that Program financing is inappropriate based on the credit review conducted in
accordance with Section 8.3(c) of this Plan and/or would not represent an
appropriate or prudent use of Program funds

(c)  The BUDC Board may decline to approve a loan where the approval of the loan
would not meet the objectives of the Program, would not represent an
appropriate or prudent use of Program funds, and/or the Board has determined In
its discretion that making the loan to the Borrower is not appropriate or in the
best interests of BUDC.



Draft of 9/12/13 Page 6 of 12

Section 6. POST-APPROVAL PROCESS

6.1 Commitment Letter. Within seven (7) calendar days from the date of the BUDC Board's
approval of a Program loan, a commitment letter will be sent fo the applicant that includes, at a

minimum, the following information:

(a)  The amount of the loan approved, the applicable interest rate, the term of the
loan, the terms of repayment, and the expiration date of the commitment.

{b) The required use of the loan funds.

(c) BUDC's requirements for collateral and additional security including guarantees,
collateral morigages, pledges of assels, etc.

(d)  The conditions and requirements applicable for loan disbursements (see Section
6.5 of this Plan).

(e) Any other conditions of lending.

N A listing and explanation of any fees to be charged (including the commitment
fee as required by Section 8.2 herein) and other closing costs and fees that will
be the responsibility of the Barrower.

(g)  Alisting of the conditions and requirements of the Borrower that must be fulfilled
precedent to a [oan closing.

(h)  Any other information that could reasonably be expected to influence the
Borrower's decision to accept the terms of the loan commitment.

6.2 Commitment Fee. In consideration of BUDC's reservation of funds for approved loan
applications, the loan applicant will be charged a commitment fee equal to the greater of one
percent (1%) of the approved loan amount or $2,500.00. The fee shall be nonrefundable and
shall become due and payable concurrent with the applicant's executed acceptance of the loan
commitment. The BUDC Board shall have the right to establish an altemative commitment fee
in instances where BUDC is participating its loan with the Lead Lender. In such instancas, the
establishment of the commitment fee shall be in consideration of the expenses incurred by
BUDC in processing the ioan application.

6.3 Loan Closings. The BUDC Atforney will have the responsibility to prepare and/or require
the preparation of all appropriate closing documents. The Borrower will be required to pay all
closing costs incurred by BUDC, including the fees and disbursements of the BUDC Attorney.
The BUDC Attorney will dstermine the appropriats closing documents to be executad bassd
upon the terms and conditions of the loan approval and standard commercial lending policies,
and will ccerdinate loan closings with the Leed Lender. Such documents shall generally include

the following:

(a) Aioan agreement that includes a description of the loan terms and security,
appropriate representations and warranties, the conditions of lending, affirmative
and negative covenants, default provisions, and any other provisions that may be



Draft of 9/12/13 Page 7 of 12

(b)
(¢}

(d)

appropriate,
A note or notes to evidence the indebtadness and the terms of repayment.

The appropriate documents to evidence and record mortgages, llens,
guarantees, and such other security as may be required by the tarms of the loan.

Other appropriate documents as determined by the BUDC Attomey.

6.4  Securily. The BUDC Attorney will be responsible for perfecting all of BUDC's security
interasts including, where appropriate, the exscution of security agreements, the filing of
financing statements, the execution and filing of mortgage documents, the exscution of
guarantees, and any other appropriate actions to adequately protect BUDC's security interests.
Intercreditor agreements will be executed where appropriate to further protect BUDC’s interests
and to facilitate the processing of defaults and foreclosures.

8.5 Loan Disbursements. The following guidelines will generally apply fo tha disbursement
of Program loans:

&j

(b)

(c)

(d)

Tne scheduie for Program ioan disbursemants wiil (i) require that developer
equity, to the extent feasibie, be axpended prior to the disbursement of Program
funds, and (i) bs coordinatsd and/or prorated with the Lead Lender and any
other construction financing sources.

BUDC will, at its discretion, determine an appropriate drew schedule for Program
funding besed on such factors as the magnitude of risk assumed by the BUDC,
the nature of the activities being financed, and the draw schadule for the other
financing. The mannaer and terms of the disbursement of the Program financing
should normally be inciuded in the approval of the financing by the BUDC Board.
However, in instances where the BUDC Board has not prescribed a draw
schedule, the Loan Commiites, may asiablish a drew schedula.

Subject to the Borrower's compliance with the terms and conditions of the loan
agreament, all documents evidencing and securing the loan, and other guidelines
for disbursement as described in this Section 8.5, BUDC may disburse loan
proceeds upon the Borrower’s presentation of evidence satisfactory to BUDC of
paid or accrued expenses of the Borrower and which are ellgible costs as
determined by BUDC. Advances of loan proceeds may also be subject to receipt
of lien waivers, satisfactory title continuations and endorsements, and other
requirements necessary to protect BUDC's lien priority and to comply with the
New York Lien Law, as determined by the BUDC Attomney.

No Program funds should be disbursed prior to BUDC's receipt of (i) satisfactory
documentation of the commitment of all required permanent financing including
any financing to be used to take out the Progrem loan; and (il) copies of signec
construction contracts for the Project.



Draft of 9/12/13 Page 8of 12

Section7. = LOAN MANAGEMENT

7.1 Delinguencigs. BUDC will contact the Borrower within thirty (30) days of any
delinquency of payment to inform the Borrower of the delinquency and to determine if there is a
need to procure additional information. Delinquencies that continue for sixty (60) days will be
referred to the Loan Committea and BUDC Attorney for further action. A late fee equal o five
percent (5.0% per annum) of the periodic payment amount wiil apply to all ioans.

7.2 Psriodic Profect Monitoring. BUDC staff wili be responsibla for initiating pericdic
consuitation with the Lead Lender to recelve Project status reports. In addition, BUDC steff
should recaive and review regular updates of fingncial status including datail regarding Projact
expenditures and loan disbursemenis.

7.3  Adjustment of Terms and Conditions. Requests by the Borrower for adjustment of any
of the terms and conditions of the loan will be reviewed to determine whether the adjustment is

in the best interests of BUDC. Requests will be processad in accordance with the following:

() Requasts to adjust the intarest rate, term of the loan, or security for the loan will
be presenied to the Loan Commiitea for revisw and recommendations and
presentsd to the BUDC Board for action. Arny such adjustments will require
approval of the BUDC Board. -

(b) Aninitial request to accrue interest, defer principal paymeants, or otherwise
temporarily medify the repayment schedule may be approved by the Loan
Commitiee for a period not to excead 80 days. Extensions for any longer pericd
will require the approval of the BUDC Board. Subsequent extension requests will
require the approval of the BUDC Board in ail circumstancas.

(c) Requests for changes respacting any covenanis or conditions of a financial
nature must be approved by the Loan Committee as to contsnt and the BUDC

Aitormay as to form.

{d) Reauests for any other changes {o the cevenanis or conditions of the Program
leen including, but not fimited to such araas gs reporting requirements, cost
documentation, and maintsnance of records may be approved by the Loan
Commitiee.

74  Periodic Interast Rate Review. In instances where BUDC may establish a revised
interest rate pursuant to its rights as a lender, the Loan Commitiee shall be responsible for
reviewing appropriate information regarding the status of the credit and providing a
recommendation to the BUDC Board based upon such factors as the analysis of risk, the
Borrower’s history of compliance with the loan terms, conditions, and covenants, and prevailing
commercial lending rates. The Board shall be responsible for establishing the revised rate.

7.5 Loan Servicing. A Loan Manager will be appointed by BUDC to provide accounting,
billing, and collection services for all loans. The Loan Manager shall ba responsible for the

following:
(a)  Maintenance of all books and records for the loan portfolio, including outstanding



Draft of 9/12/13 Page 9 of 12

loan balances, receipt of monthly principal and interest payments, loan interest
rate and loan term.

(b)  Preparation and issuance of monthly invoices to all borrowers, specifying loan
identification number, monthly principal and Interest due, due date, late payment
penelty loan balance and remaining loan term.

{(c)  Coiiaction and monlioring of monthiy ioan payments and preparation of monthly
reporis on collections, outstanding balances and past due payments.

(d)  Monitoring of ioan collateral including the oversight and monitoring of mortgage
and UCC filings and corporate and personal guarantees.

(e)  Oversight and monitoring of borrowers’ submissions of updated financial
statements and employment reporting.

(8) Implementation of procedures for cash management and the investment of loan
principal and interest repayments as established by the BUDC Board.

SECTION 8. EXCEPTIONS

8.1  Exceptions - Eligibifitv/Program Standards. In operating the Program, BUDC may
deviate from the Eligibility and Program Standards sections of this Plan only where such
deviatlon Is determined by the BUDC Board to result in an extraordinary public bensfit to the
City of Buffaio. The nature of the deviation and the nature and extent of public benefit to result
must be stated in an approved Board Resolution.

82  Excepfions - Other. Any deviation to the Plan other than as stated in Section 8.1 must
be approved by a resolution of the BUDC Board that states the nature of the deviation and the

reason(s) for its approval.



Buffalo Urban Development Corporation
Buffalo Bullding Reuse Loan Program

Policy Guidelines and Operating Plan

FINAL
Adopted by BUDCT Board on [MMM, DD 2013]



CONTENTS

Section 1. GENERAL

1.1 Policy Guidelines and Operating Pian
1.2 Objectives
1.3 Form of Assistance

Section 2. ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS

2.1 Eligible Activitles
2.2 Eligible Bormowers
2.3 Bank Participation

Section 3. PROGRAM STANDARDS

3.1 Program Financing Amount
3.2 Minimum Amount of Program Assistancs
3.3 Maximum Amount of Program Asslistance

Section 4. LENDING POLICIES

4.1 Term of Loans
4.2 Interest Rate

4.3 Repayment Terms
4.4 Security

4.5 Subordination

Section 5. APPLICATION PROCESSING

5.1 Loan Applications

5.2 Application Fee

5.3 Application Processing

5.4 Bridge Loan Underwriting Standards
5.5 Mortgage Loan Underwriting Standards
5.6 Loan Review Committee

5.7 Loan Approval
5.8 Loan Declination

—h o

NN N

WM N

s bbb



CONTENTS (cont.)

Section 8. POST-APPROVAL PROCESS

6.1 Commitment Letter
6.2 Commitment Fee
6.3 Loan Closings

6.4 Security

6.5 Loan Disbursements

Section 7. LOAN MANAGEMENT

7.1 Delinquencies

7.2 Periodic Project Monitoring

7.3 Adjustment of Terms and Conditions
7.4 Periodic Interest Rate Review

7.5 Loan Servicing

Section 8. EXCEPTIONS

8.1 Exceptions - Eligibility/Program Standards
8.2 Exceptions - Other

N~

4 N e RN



